
 
CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PRINCE 

AGENDA 

January 10, 2023 

6:45 PM 

 

 

Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86077050722?pwd=ZmdsdnBreG1talJOajUxdXhpSXBJdz09 
 

Meeting ID: 860 7705 0722 
Passcode: 411318 

 

1.  Call to Order 

 

2. Approve Agenda 

 

3. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest 

 

4. Minutes of Previous Meetings 

a)  Minutes of Regular Meetings Nov 8, 2022. 

b)  Minutes of Special Meeting Dec 6, 2022. 

 

5.  Questions and information arising out of the minutes. 

 

6. Petitions and/or delegations  

 

a) Prince Township Council Chambers – Councillor Christenson 

 

7. Staff Reports 

 

a) November Treasurer Expenditure Report 

b) November Treasurer Revenue Report 

c) December Treasurer Expenditure Report 

d) December Treasurer Revenue Report  

e) Fire Report 

 

8.  Planning – None  

 

9. By-Laws 

 

a) Boards and Committee’s Bylaw 2023- 01 

 

10. Notice and Notice of Motions  

 

11. Correspondence 



 
CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PRINCE 

AGENDA 

January 10, 2023 

6:45 PM 

 

 

 

a) NDMNRF Municipal Forest Fire Management Update 

b) MMAH Letter from Minister Clark Update on Bill 3, Bill 23 Bill 39, Bill 109 

c) MPAC Municipal Levy update 

d) MNRF Letter Legislative Changes Conservations Authorities and participating Municipalities 

e) 2023 OCIF funding update 

f) MMAH Letter from Minister Clark – Building Inspectors, Modernizing Quarts, Building Code 

Compendium 

g) Friends of Prince Library CSJ Application Letter to Terry Sheehan MP 

h) Ministry of Environment letter re Blue Box from Minister Piccini 

 

12. Minutes of Boards and Committees  

 

a) Rec Committee Minutes Dec 2022 

 

13. New Business 

 

a) Duane Wenmann requests to use hall for karate classes 

b) City of SSM agreement to provide Building Inspection Services 

c) Ombudsman Letter re March 2022 closed meeting 

d) Pay Equity Review update request 

e) Information Only Proposals for Council Electronic Meetings software 

 

14.   Old Business  

 

15. Closed Session  

 
a) Personal matters about an identifiable individual, including municipal employees [s. 239(2)(b)] 

16. Confirmatory By-Law-  

 

17. Adjournment  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 
   

 
     
   

                                                                                  

Present:  Council:  K. Lamming, E.Caputo, M. Matthews, E. Palumbo, I. Chambers 
                 Staff: A.Nowlan,  L, Bagg,  

Public: M. Christensen, M.Mick, R. Christensen, R.Zaraja, J.Weir, G. Russell, M. Moore, T. Baxter, 
B. Holmes 

     Media:  M. LaHay  
     

 

1. Call to Order 6:45 p.m. 
 

2. Approve Agenda 
Resolution 2022-206 
Moved by:   Councillor E. Palumbo   Seconded by: Councillor M.Matthews 

Be it resolved that this council hereby approves the November 8, 2022, agenda, and any addendum, as 
presented.  (cd) 

 

3. Disclosure of interest -None 
 

4. Minutes of Previous meeting 
a) Minutes of Regular Meeting on October 11, 2022 and Closed Meeting October 27, 2022.   

Resolution 2022-207 
Moved by: Councillor E. Palumbo   Seconded by: Councillor M. Matthews 

Be it resolved that this Council hereby approves the minutes of the Regular meeting of October 11, 2022 
And minutes of Closed meeting October 27, 2022 as presented. (cd) 

 

5. Questions and information arising out of the minutes -none 
 

6. Petition and delegations  
 

a) BDO present 2021 Financial Statements 
 

Resolution 2022-208 
Moved by: Councillor E. Palumbo   Seconded by: Councillor M. Matthews 

Be it resolved that this Council hereby approves the 2021 Financial Statements presented to Council by 
BDO as presented. (cd) 

 
 

7. Staff Reports 
a) Fire Chief report  

   Resolution 2022-209 
Moved by: Councillor E. Palumbo   Seconded by: Councillor M.Matthews   

Be it resolved that this Council hereby accepts the Fire Chief’s report as presented. (cd) 
 

b) Road Superintendent Report - none 
 

c)    Treasurer’s Report – Revenue and Expenditure Reports from September 2022.   

Resolution 2022-210 
Moved by: Councillor E. Palumbo   Seconded by: Councillor M. Matthews 

Be it resolved that this Council hereby accepts the Treasurer’s Revenue and Expenditure Reports:  
October 2022 revenue report in the amount of $306400.63 and the October 2022 expenditure report in the 
amount of $248913.68.  (cd) 

 
8. Planning - None 

 
 
 

9. By-laws - None 
 

 

10. Motions and notice of motions -none 
 

 

11. Correspondence  
 
a) SSMCA Proposed Budget and Levy for Municipal Consultation 

 

Resolution 2022- 211 
Moved by: Councillor M.Matthews   Seconded by: Councillor I.Chambers 

CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PRINCE 
REGULAR MEETING 

Minutes 
November 8, 2022 

Township Hall, 3042 Second Line West, Prince TWP 
6:45 p.m 



 
 

Be it resolved that this Council hereby receives the SSMCA Proposed Budget and Levy for Municipal 
Consultation as information.  (cd) 
 
b) CEMC Letter of Resignation Information only – no discussion 

 
Resolution 2022-212 
Moved by: Councillor I. Chambers   Seconded by: Councillor M.Matthews 

Be it resolved that this Council accepts the CEMC letter of Resignation as information. (cd) 
 

c) DSSMSSAB Correspondance 
 
 

Resolution 2022- 213 
Moved by: Councillor M. Matthews   Seconded by: Councillor I. Chambers 

Be it resolved that this Council accepts the DSSMSSAB letter with regards to their General Operating 
Grant as information. (cd). 
 

d) Ontario Wildlife Damage Compensation Correspondance 
 

Resolution 2022- 214 
Moved by: Councillor I. Chambers   Seconded by: Councillor E. Caputo 

Be it resolved that this Council accepts the Ontario Wildlife Damage Compensation correspondence as information. 
(cd) 
 

e) MMAH letter from Minister Steve Clark 
 

Resolution 2022- 215 
Moved by: Councillor M.Matthews   Seconded by: Councillor I. Chambers 

Be it resolved that this Council accepts the Letter from MMAH Minister Steve Clark as information. (cd) 
 

 
 

12. Minutes of Boards and Committees - none 
 

13. New Business 
 

a) Township of Perry – Resolution of Support Healthcare connect system – Canadian Armed Forces 
 

Resolution 2022- 216 
Moved by: Councillor E. Palumbo   Seconded by: Councillor I. Chambers 

Be it resolved that this Council supports the Township of Perry Letter of Resolution of Support 
Healthcare Connect System – Canadian Armed Forces (def). 
 

b) Huron Shores Request for Support Streamlining Government legislation for Physicians in Ontario 
 

Resolution 2022- 217 
Moved by: Councillor I. Chambers   Seconded by: Councillor M. Matthews 

Be it resolved that this Council supports Huron Shores Request for Support Streamlining Governing 
Legislation for Physicians in Ontario. (cd) 
 

c) East Ferris Letter for support RECE’s – Child Care Workforce Shortage 
 

Resolution 2022- 218 
Moved by: Councillor M. Matthews   Seconded by: Councillor I. Chambers 

Be it resolved that this Council supports East Ferris support for RECE’s Child Care workforce 
shortage.  (cd) 

 
d) Renew Agreement between City Sault Ste. Marie and Prince Township re: Building Inspection Services 

 

Resolution 2022- 219 
Moved by: Councillor E. Palumbo   Seconded by: Councillor I. Chambers 

Be it resolved that this Council approves the renewal Agreement between City of Sault Ste. Marie and Prince 
Township re: Building Inspection Services until Dec 31, 2026. (cd). 

 
 

14. Old Business - None 
 

15.  Closed Session - None 

 

16. Confirmatory By-law 
 

Resolution 2022-220 



 
 

Moved by:  Councillor M.Matthews  Seconded by: Councillor I. Chambers 
Be it resolved that this Council hereby adopts By-Law 2022-26, being a by-law to adopt, ratify, and 
confirm the action of Council for November 8, 2022.  (cd) 

 

17.  Adjournment  

Resolution 2022-221 
  Moved by: Councillor E. Caputo  Seconded by: Councillor I. Chambers  

Be it resolved that this Council hereby adjourns at 7:22 p.m. until December 13, 2022, or the call of the 
chair. (cd) 
 
 
 
 
 
______________________________   ___________________________  
Mayor, E. Palumbo     Clerk, A. Nowlan 



 
 

 
   

 
     
   

                                                                                  

Present:  Council:  E. Plaumbo, E.Caputo, M. Mick, J.Weir  Regrets: M. Christenson 
                 Staff: A.Nowlan,   

Public: None 
     Media:  M. LaHay  
     

 

1. Call to Order 6 p.m. 
 

2. Approve Agenda 

Resolution 2022-222 
Moved by:   Councillor M. Mick   Seconded by: Councillor J.Weir 

Be it resolved that this council hereby approves the December 6, 2022, agenda, and any addendum, as 
presented.  (cd) 

 

3. Disclosure of interest -None 
 

4. Minutes of Previous meeting – None 
 

5. Questions and information arising out of the minutes -None 
 

6. Petition and delegations - None 
 

7. Staff Reports - None 

 
8. Planning - None 

 
 

9. By-laws - None 
 

10. Motions and notice of motions -None 
 

 

11. Correspondence - None 
 
 

12. Minutes of Boards and Committees - none 
 

13. New Business 
 

a) New Council Training Options 
1) MMAH Larid Town Hall 3 Hours 
 

Resolution 2022- 223 
Moved by: Councillor M. Mick   Seconded by: Councillor J. Weir 

Be it resolved that this Council approves the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing Training at the 
Laird Town Hall in January for Council and Municipal Administrator (cd). 
 
2) Summit New Council Media Training 3 hours 
 

Resolution 2022- 224 
Moved by: Councillor J.Weir   Seconded by: Councillor E. Caputo 

Be it resolved that this Council approves the Summit New Council Media training for Council and 
Municipal Administrator. (cd) 
 
3) AMCTO ½ Session Council relations 

 
Resolution 2022- 225 
Moved by: Councillor J. Weir   Seconded by: Councillor E. Caputo 

Be it resolved that this Council approves the AMCTO ½ session during the day for Council and 
Municipal Administrator. (def) 

 
4) MPAC Training 

 

Resolution 2022- 226 
Moved by: Councillor M. Mick   Seconded by: Councillor J.Weir 

Be it resolved that this Council approves the MPAC Training session for Council and Municipal Administrator (cd). 

CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PRINCE 
SPECIAL MEETING 

Minutes 
December 6, 2022 

Township Hall, 3042 Second Line West, Prince TWP 
6p.m 



 
 

5) Wishart E4M Training over 3 Years 

 
 

Resolution 2022- 227 
Moved by: Councillor J. Weir   Seconded by: Councillor E. Caputo 

Be it resolved that this Council approves the Wishart E4M Training Program over 3 years. (def) 
 

6) Council Training Provided by Sault Ste. Marie City Clerk R. Tyczinski 
 

Resolution 2022- 228 
Moved by: Councillor M. Mick   Seconded by: Councillor J.Weir 

Be it resolved that this Council approves Council Training provided by SSM City Clerk R. Tyczinski. 
(cd). 
 

b) Outdoor Rink Volunteers Meeting December 12 , 2022 
 

Resolution 2022- 229 
Moved by: Councillor J.Weir   Seconded by: Councillor E.Caputo 

Be it resolved that this Council approves of volunteers to run the Township rink this winter.(cd) 
 

c) Request to Hire for CEMC 

 
Resolution 2022- 230 
Moved by: Councillor M. Mick   Seconded by: Councillor E.Caputo 

Be it resolved that this Council approves of hiring a new Community Emergency Management 
Coordinator. (cd). 
 

Resolution 2022- 231 
Moved by: Councillor E.Caputo   Seconded by: Councillor J.Weir 

Be it resolved that this Council approves to purchase for outgoing CEMC Bruce Gregoire a gift 
certificate for $200.00 to thank him for his service to the Community. (cd). 
 

d) 2023 ROMA Conference in Toronto, Mayor Palumbo Request to Attend. 
 

Resolution 2022- 232 
Moved by: Councillor M. Mick   Seconded by: Councillor E.Caputo 

Be it resolved that this Council approves of Mayor Palumbo attending the ROMA Conference in Toronto and 
approving costs associated with attendance. (cd) 
 

e) Name Members to Various Committees and Deputy Mayor 
 

Resolution 2022- 233 
Moved by: Councillor M. Mick   Seconded by: Councillor J.Weir 

Be it resolved that this Council approves By-Law 2022 -27, being a By-Law to appoint members to 
Committees, Boards, Agencies and to Appoint a Deputy Mayor for 2023. (cd). 
 

f) Treasurer to obtain NCU Credit Card to Conduct Township Business $20k limit (same as last card). 
 

Resolution 2022- 234 
Moved by: Councillor E.Caputo   Seconded by: Councillor M.Mick 

Be it resolved that this Council approves of Prince Township Treasurer to obtain a Credit Card from 
Northern Credit Union to conduct Township Business with a $20,000 limit (to replace closed card of same 
limit). (cd). 
 

g) DSSAB Agreement Amendment CWELCC Funding 
 

Resolution 2022- 235 
Moved by: Councillor E.Caputo   Seconded by: Councillor J.Weir 

Be it resolved that this Council approves of DSSAB Agreement amendment on CWELCC funding. (cd) 
 

h) Add Councillor Eugene Caputo as Signor to Prince Township and Parent Child Resource accounts 
 

Resolution 2022- 236 
Moved by: Councillor M.Mick   Seconded by: Councillor J.Weir 

Be it resolved that this Council approves of adding signing authority to all Prince Township and Parent 
Child Resource accounts to Councillor Eugene Caputo. (cd). 
 

i) Township Complaint Process Review 
 
 
 



 
 

Resolution 2022- 237 
Moved by: Councillor E.Caputo   Seconded by: Councillor M.Mick 

Be it resolved that this Council agrees to use Registered Complaint Form as presented. (cd). 
 

 
 

14. Old Business - None 
 

15.  Closed Session  

 

a) Personal Matters about an Identifiable Individual s. 239(2)(b) 

Contract Discussion 

b) Personal Matters About an Identifiable Individual s.239(2)(b) 

Recreation Committee 

c) Personal Matters About an Identifiable Individual s.239(2)(b) 

Hiring 

d) Litigation or potential litigation, including matters before administrative tribunals, affecting the municipality s. 239(2)(e) 

Marshall Drive 

Resolution 2022-238 
Moved by:  Councillor M.Mick  Seconded by: Councillor E. Caputo 

Be it resolved that this Council hereby agrees to move into Closed Session @ 7:25pm.  (cd) 
 

 

Resolution 2022-239 
Moved by:  Councillor M.Mick  Seconded by: Councillor J.Weir 

Be it resolved that this Council hereby agrees to move out of Closed Session @ 8:50pm.  (cd) 
 

Resolution 2022-240 
Moved by:  Councillor M.Mick  Seconded by: Councillor E. Caputo 

Be it resolved that this Council hereby agrees to extend and re-engage Peggy Greco’s contract to be 
prepared by E4M. To continue training the Municipal Administrator and work through the backlog of 
administrative duties. (cd) 

 

16. Confirmatory By-law - None 
 

17.  Adjournment  

Resolution 2022-241 
  Moved by: Councillor M.Mick  Seconded by: Councillor J. Weir  

Be it resolved that this Council hereby adjourns at 8:53pm p.m. until December 13, 2022, or the call of the 
chair. (cd) 
 
 
 
 
 
______________________________   ___________________________  
Mayor, E. Palumbo     Clerk, A. Nowlan 



Agenda item 7 Treasurer Expenditure report Nov 2022 

CheckNumbereCh

eckID 

Date VName CheckRegisterAm

ount 

chq 14024-14041 Nov payroll 
 

$14,189.01 

10294 2022-11-02 Receiver General $5,165.39 

10295 2022-11-02 Orkin Canada Corporation $67.01 

10296 2022-11-02 Steve Hemsworth $1,055.42 

10297 2022-11-02 Hannah Horner $221.75 

10298 2022-11-07 Archibald Bros. $1,627.20 

10299 2022-11-07 Lyons TIM-BR Mart $41.14 

10300 2022-11-07 Spectrum Group $367.25 

10301 2022-11-07 WirelessCom Ca Inc. $496.58 

10302 2022-11-07 Airways General Store $100.02 

10303 2022-11-07 Lorraine Mousseau $57.39 

10304 2022-11-07 UAP INC. $46.83 

10305 2022-11-07 GFL Environmental Inc. $6,789.04 

10306 2022-11-07 Collabria Visa $1,427.95 

10307 2022-11-07 TIFFANY BAXTER $18.07 

10308 2022-11-07 Hannah Horner $110.91 

10309 2022-11-10 Ken Lamming $200.00 

10310 2022-11-10 Eugene Caputo $100.00 

10311 2022-11-10 Enzo Palumbo $200.00 

10312 2022-11-10 Jane Weir $100.00 

10313 2022-11-10 Michael Matthews $100.00 

10314 2022-11-10 MARGARET CHRISTENSON $100.00 

10315 2022-11-10 MELANIE MICK $100.00 

10316 2022-11-17 Public Utilities Corporation $787.00 

10317 2022-11-17 WirelessCom Ca Inc. $181.37 

10318 2022-11-17 Petty Cash- LeeAnn Bagg $121.20 

10319 2022-11-17 Reliance Home Comfort $63.00 

10320 2022-11-17 Steve Rouble $150.00 



Agenda item 7 Treasurer Expenditure report Nov 2022 

10321 2022-11-17 Frankie's Automotive & Body Shop $279.60 

10322 2022-11-17 Ketchum Manufacturing Inc. $178.01 

10323 2022-11-17 City of Sault Ste. Marie $7,142.92 

10324 2022-11-17 Nor-Therm Refrigeration Ltd. $750.77 

10325 2022-11-17 Orkin Canada Corporation $63.45 

10326 2022-11-17 Krown Rust Control & Lube Centre $327.70 

10327 2022-11-17 Xerox Canada Inc. $53.77 

10328 2022-11-17 ENBRIDGE GAS INC. $51.63 

10329 2022-11-17 DE LAGE LANDEN FINANCIAL SERVICES 

CANADA INC. 

$532.70 

10330 2022-11-17 Andrew Nowlan $90.00 

10331 2022-11-17 Adam Paci $110.91 

10332 2022-11-17 Tyler Sehovic $146.50 

10333 2022-11-17 Mario Taranto $272.25 

10334 2022-11-17 Alex Morin $122.75 

10335 2022-11-17 Paul MacPherson $20.00 

10336 2022-11-17 Stacey Eddy $225.00 

10337 2022-11-17 Donna MacDonald $250.00 

10338 2022-11-23 City of Sault Ste Marie $17,457.44 

10339 2022-11-23 Spectrum Group $389.86 

10340 2022-11-23 Lorraine Mousseau $15.47 

10341 2022-11-23 Commercial Heating $870.10 

10342 2022-11-23 Municipal Finance Officers' Association $310.75 

10343 2022-11-23 Johnson Township $25.00 

10344 2022-11-23 SPI Health and Safety Inc. $96.05 

10345 2022-11-23 Fire Marshal's Public Fire Safety Council $167.31 

10346 2022-11-23 Steve Hemsworth $319.03 

10347 2022-11-23 ADAPTIVE SECURITY TRAINING $1,469.00 

10348 2022-11-23 Samantha Pigeau $179.43 



Agenda item 7 Treasurer Expenditure report Nov 2022 

10349 2022-11-24 Receiver General $4,852.84 

10350 2022-11-24 Huron Superior Catholic School Board $18,159.69 

10351 2022-11-24 LeCounseil Scolaire de District Catholique $1,660.37 

10352 2022-11-24 Conseil Scolaire de District du Grand Nord $1,119.68 

10353 2022-11-24 Algoma District School Board $66,836.47 

10354 2022-11-28 Bell Canada $142.91 

10355 2022-11-28 Pioneer Construction Inc. $160.41 

10356 2022-11-28 Equipment World $144.64 

10357 2022-11-28 Topline Electric Limited $198.03 

10358 2022-11-28 Xerox Canada Inc. $36.80 

10359 2022-11-28 Borealis Planning Services (Use Stephen 

Turco) 

$0.00 

10360 2022-11-28 ENBRIDGE GAS INC. $679.64 

10361 2022-11-28 Andrew Nowlan $271.20 
   

$160,163.61 

 



Agenda item 7c)  
 
   

November 2022 

Prince Township     

Revenue Report  

  

Recreation Revenue 966 

Tax Certificate 50 

Perpetual Care 480 

Parent/Child Revenue 
(Omers) October 

4014.72 

Trans Canada Trail 
Funding 

900 

Opening & Closing 496 

Fire Donations and 
Miscellaneous 

100 

Address Sign 30 

CCBF Gas Tax 32032.30 

Hall Rental 89 

Service Charge 45 

Sub-total 39203.02 

Property Tax 92721.71 

  131924.73 
 



Agenda item 7c Dec 2022 Prince Township Expenditure report 

 

CheckNumbereCh

eckID 

Date VName CheckRegisterAmo

unt 

chqs 14042-14078 DEC payroll / Honorariums 32387.5 

10362 2022-12-02 Public Utilities Corporation $37.46 

10363 2022-12-02 Spectrum Group $367.25 

10364 2022-12-02 WirelessCom Ca Inc. $471.27 

10365 2022-12-02 Township of St Joseph $1,000.00 

10366 2022-12-02 TIFFANY BAXTER $755.07 

10367 2022-12-02 Andrew Nowlan $17.43 

10369 2022-12-06 Algoma Public Health $10,158.50 

10370 2022-12-06 Stone's Office Supply Inc. $153.28 

10371 2022-12-06 GFL Environmental Inc. $8,642.24 

10372 2022-12-06 Steve Hemsworth $340.99 

10373 2022-12-08 Orkin Canada Corporation $153.85 

10374 2022-12-08 Bobbi-Jo Holmes $566.79 

10375 2022-12-08 TIFFANY BAXTER $35.31 

10376 2022-12-08 Paul MacPherson $40.00 

10377 2022-12-08 Adam Lyons $240.00 

10378 2022-12-09 Public Utilities Corporation $1,339.11 

10379 2022-12-09 Stephen Turco, RPP $800.00 

10380 2022-12-09 Andrew Nowlan $1,458.18 

10381 2022-12-12 Christmas Cheer $302.10 

10382 2022-12-15 Archibald Bros. $830.55 

10383 2022-12-15 Public Utilities Corporation $695.49 

10384 2022-12-15 Lorraine Mousseau $123.02 

10385 2022-12-15 Andrew Nowlan $262.00 

10386 2022-12-15 Bernardi Human Resource Laws LLP $5,338.12 

10387 2022-12-21 Petty Cash- LeeAnn Bagg $28.75 

10388 2022-12-21 City of Sault Ste. Marie $17,457.44 

10389 2022-12-21 ENBRIDGE GAS INC. $781.60 



Agenda item 7c Dec 2022 Prince Township Expenditure report 

 

10390 2022-12-21 GERALD MARSHALL $208.00 

10391 2022-12-21 HUCKSON'S WATER DEPOT $311.74 

10392 2022-12-21 Andrew Nowlan $13.51 

10393 2022-12-21 Made by Shirley $260.00 

10394 2022-12-21 Dawn Allard $520.00 

10395 2022-12-23 Scotia Bank $1,833.72 

10396 2022-12-23 Orkin Canada Corporation $153.85 

10397 2022-12-23 Xerox Canada Inc. $31.62 

Northern Credit 

Union 

2022-12-02 Northern Credit Union $15.00 

   
$88,130.74 

 



Agenda item 7 d 
 
   

December 2022 

Prince Township     

Revenue Report  

  

Recreation Revenue 1267.50 

Tax Certificate 50 

Perpetual Care 200 

Parent/Child Revenue 
(Omers)  

4468.06 

Parent Child Revenue 
Rent 

4595.00 

Q3 Stewardship 
Ontario 

5615.39 

Opening & Closing 26 

Dog tags 37.5 

Donation 100 

Fire Permits 20 

Overpayment on 
training Pryor learning 

15.92 

Hall Rental 168 

Sub-total 16563.37 

Property Tax 31154.33 

  47717.70 
 



                       COUNCIL       REPORT
________________________________________________________      
                  
Date:     January 10, 2022 Date Presented:       January 18, 2022
Prepared By:  Steve Hemsworth Rank: Fire Chief

Fire Department Budget Highlights 2023

New Apparatus and Equipment - $12000.00

- New hose and appliances for new truck $7000.00
- New boots and gloves to replace expired and damaged gear $2000.00
- One new set of turnout gear to replace gear expiring this year as per NFPA 1971 

and Ontario OHSA- $3000.00.

Fire Licenses and Permits - $7500.00

This includes $3968.64 for use of Spectrum's Prince Lake Radio Tower, $1289.66 for 
Edispatches firefighter notification application and $456.84 to the Receiver General of 
Canada for radio authorization renewal (all 2022 numbers).  The remainder of the 
$7000.00 budgeted is for DZ drivers license renewal testing and physical exams.

Training - $6800.00

In June of last year the province initiated mandatory minimum training for the fire service.  
We still have three firefighters that will require NFPA 1001 Firefighter 1, Firefighter 2 and 
NFPA 1071 Hazmat Operations.  Also includes annual Health Care Provider re-
certification for all firefighters and first response personnel.  

Fire Station - $9200.00

This includes electricity, natural gas, hydro, pest control, cleaning supplies and building 
maintenance and repair.   Includes $1175.00 paid to CACC for fire dispatch services.  
Starting in 2023 the Township Office will be charging the Township Fire Department 
$1200.00 per year for internet services which has been added to the budget.



Painting - $8000.00

Not included in the fire department budget.  With the installation of the new heating 
system, some drywall had to be removed within the hall in 2021.  It was repaired and 
primed but the entire interior of the hall needs to have further drywall repair and painting.  
By itself painting not eligible for infrastructure funding.

Floor Sealing - $15000.00

The entire building is built on concrete slab.  The floors in the fire hall, both within the bay 
and the classroom / office area are concrete and are deteriorating.  The bay floor has large 
cracks that need to be repaired and sealed to prevent further damage.  The tile in the 
office and classroom area are peeling and creating a health and safety concern.  As such 
a tender was requested to repair, seal and epoxy the bay floor and remove the old flooring 
in the classroom / office area, repair the concrete, seal and epoxy the floor.

Both the painting and floor sealing is eligible for funding under the Canada Community 
Building Fund.

Community Risk Assessment

Under O/Reg 378/18 the township must complete a Community Risk Assessment by July 
1, 2024.  I have no idea how much it would cost to have one competed however I have 
budgeted $10,000.00 to have this done.







Expenditures
Acct. #             Name 2022 Budget 2022 Actual

As of Dec 15/22
01-31-310100   Fire Honorariums 45,000.00 45,000.00
01-31-310120   Pumper 1 Fuel 500.00 1,046.84
01-31-310130   Pumper 1 Repair 1,500.00 988.25
01-31-310140   Pump 2/3 Fuel 500.00 492.84
01-31-310150   Pump 2/3 Repair 1,000.00 265.25
01-31-310170   New Apparatus & Equipment 14,500.00 15,052.82
01-31-310175   First Response Expense 500.00 91.56
01-31-310180   Repairs to Apparatus & Equipment 1,000.00 739.79
01-31-310185   Recertification of Apparatus and Equipment 5,500.00 4,351.06
01-31-310190   Fire -  Licenses & Permits 7,000.00 6,966.28
01-31-310200   Training 6,750.00 7,182.43
01-31-310210   Fire Station 8,000.00 6,488.81
01-31-310215   Mutual Aid 300.00 0.00
01-31-310220   Miscellaneous Fire 700.00 607.26
01-31-310240   Fire Prevention 250.00 213.41
Totals 93,000.00 89,486.60



 (Over)/under 2023 Proposed Budget Notes

45,000.00
1,000.00
1,000.00
1,000.00

500.00
12,000.00 See Highlights

500.00
1,000.00
5,500.00
7,500.00 See Highlights
6,800.00 See Highlights
9,200.00 See Highlights

300.00
700.00
500.00

92,500.00

( -  )                                                              



Prince Fire Department 10 Year Major Capital Replacement Costs

Year Turnout Gear  Helmets  Gloves   Boots  Life Span 

2023 1 - $3500.00  4 - $500.00  5 - $1000.00  10 Years 

2024 2 - $7000.00  7 - $2800.00  4 - $500.00  3 - $600.00  10 Years 

2025  6 - $2400.00  4 - $500.00  2 - $400.00  10 Years 

2026  5 – 2000.00  4 - $500.00  3 - $600.00  10 Years 

2027  4 - $500.00  3 - $600.00  10 Years 

2028 5 - $17500.00  2 - $800.00  4 - $500.00  10 years 

2029 4 - $14000.00  4 - $500.00  10 Years 

2030 1 - $3500.00 4 - $500.00 10 Years

2031 2 - $7000.00  4 - $500.00  10 Years 

2032 4 - $15000.00  4 - $500.00  2 - $500.00  10 Years 



 Hose  Equipment  Life Span 

$7,000.00 Hose & Outlets for new truck 20 Years

$2,000.00 Hose for new truck 20 Years

6 - SCBA - $60,000.00 25 Years Delivery in December

7 - SCBA - $70,000.00 25 Years Delivery in January

$3,000.00 2 – 1 ½ Nozzles 20 Years

$3,000.00 2 – 1 ½ Nozzles 20 years

$2,000.00 Thermal Imaging Camera 20 Years

$3,000.00 Positive Pressure Fan 20 Years

20 Years



The Corporation of the Township of Prince 
By-Law 2023-01 

A By-Law to Name Members  

and Council to Various  

Committees and as Acting Mayor 

 

WHEREAS the Council of the Township of Prince has established various committees and is also subject 

to participation on Committees, Boards and Agencies external to its own operations; and  

WHEREAS it is desirable to name Council Members to these Committees! Boards and Agencies; and  

WHEREAS during the absence of the Mayor it is desirable to name a Deputy Mayor to attend to the 

duties and responsibilities of the Mayor: 

NOW THEREFORE THE COUNCIL OF THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PRINCE 

ENACTS AS FOLLOWS:  

1) That Township of Prince will be represented on the following Committees, Boards and Agencies 

by the member(s) of Council or its representative as so named;  

 

a. Algoma District Municipal Association  

- Mayor E. Palumbo  

- Councillor E. Caputo  

 

b.   District of S. S. M. Social Services Administration Board  

 - Mayor E. Palumbo 

 

c.   S. S. M. Region Conservation Authority  

 - Councillor E. Palumbo 

 

d.   Human Resources Committee  

 - Mayor E. Palumbo 

 - Councillor E. Captuo 

-  Councillor M. Christenson 

 - Deputy -Clerk L. Mousseau 

 

e.    CEMC Officer  

 - TBD  

 - Councillor M.Mick Alternate 

 

f.    Parent/Child Resource Centre  

 - Councillor J. Weir  

 

g.    Recreation Committee  

- Councillor M. Christenson  Bruce Gregoire  - Melissa Parniak  

- Jane Weir              - Bobbi-Jo Holmes          - Sarah Bonin 

 - Marcie Nowlan   - Mark Carnston  - Nick Lesyshen  

 - Jessica Carnston  - Hayley Howe  - Ava Engel 

 - Frank DeMarco  - Liz Ubaldi  - Steff Ubaldi 

 - Tiffany Baxter   - Sean O’Dell  - Trisha Walls 

 - Adam Lyons   - Mary Moore      - Gayle Russell 

- Autumn McLean  -Vernon Lucas   

 



 

 By-Law 2023-01 (continued) 

 

h.    Library Board  

- Councillor Jane Weir  - Rita Wagner   - Sandy Fulcher  

- Brittany-Anne Agliani   - Hal McGonigal  - Bev Couch  

- Liz Lamming    - Vicky Taylor 

 Michael Matthews                        Helen Mackay 

 

i.    Heritage Committee/Museum Board  

- Councillor Melanie Mick  - Diane Marshall  - Gayle Russell  

- Margaret Christenson   - Michael Reed   - Michael Landmark  

 Lindsay Ackland 

 

j.    Prince Township Fire Department - Liaison  

- Councillor Eugene Caputo 

  

k.   Township of Prince Volunteer Fire Department  

- Steve Hemsworth: Chief - Jim Boissineau: Deputy Chief 

 

- Nick Delavalle   - Rob Larkin  - Dani Buckner  

- Rob Charette   - Hannah Horner - Aaron Marshall-Savage 

- Ann Marcon    - Chanel Fall  - Issac Belsito 

- Jerry Marshall    - Ethan Johnson - Mario Taranto 

- John Marshall   - Noah Sartoretto - Leslie Cassidy-Amadio   

- Adam Paci    -Blake Mitchell  - Alex Morin 

-Tyler Sehovic   - Phil Hoover 

 

I.    Prince Assisted Living Senior Services Committee  

- Councillor M. Mick       

- Hal McGonigal      - Margaret Christenson  

- Rhonda Matthews   - Anna Maria Wallenius  

 

2) That in the absence of the Mayor, Councillor Eugene Caputo will stand as the Deputy Mayor. 

 

3) That no further remuneration will be applicable to the Councillor while carrying out the duties of the 

Acting Mayor other than that which is received in the position of Councillor, unless authorized by a 

resolution of Council.  

  

4) That in the event changes to article 1, 2 or 3 are necessary during the term of Council they shall be 

completed by resolution of Council.  

 

Read a first, second and third time and passed this 10th day of  January, 2023 

 

 

 

_________________                 ____________________ 

Mayor, E. Palumbo      Clerk, A. Nowlan 





Municipality Prince Year: 2021 To 2026

Per Hectare CPC Rate $1.48 2023 4.00%

LAND CLASS TAXATION/REVENUE SITUATION     Municipal Protection Area        Crown Protection Area Total

Comprehensive CROWN  PAYS MUNICIPALITY PAYS Hectares

Protection Charge Hectares Rate Factor Cost Hectares Rate Factor Cost By Type

Unalienated Crown Land Crown does not pay Municipal Taxes 181 $1.48 100%          267.88 486 $1.48                    -   667

Provincial Parks/Conservation Reserve Crown pays grants to Municipalities 0 $1.48 100%                  -   0 $1.48                    -   0

Patented  Land                         
(Residential/farm, Farmlands, Multi-
Residential, Commercial, Industrial)                

--------------------------------------                                                                  
Federal  Lands

Municipal Taxpayers based on Assessment;  Patented 
Crown Land where Crown gives grants in lieu of taxes          

----------------------------------------------                                                   
Federal Gov't pays Grants in lieu of taxes to 

Municipality

2,828 $1.48                  -   

 

5,028 $1.48 100%         7,441.44 7,856

Private Land    ( Managed Forests )
Municipal Taxpayers                                                           

Tax Rate restricted because of public interest in this land
$1.48                  -   $1.48 50%                    -   0

Patent Mining Lands                                                    
( Crown has Full Timber Rights )                      
Patented after March 26, 1918

Unit Class of  M L (Mining lands) with a Tax Rate of C. 
( Commercal)                                                                                 

--------------------------------------------                                    
Owner pays some taxes to municipality but has no 

interest above ground 

$1.48 100%                  -   $1.48                    -   0

Federal Lands and Indian Reserves
Federal Government pays Ontario for Fire Protection 

under INAC or other agreement
$1.48 100%                  -   $1.48                    -   0

Conservation Lands                                                    
(Lands Assessed by  Conservation Lands)

C.A. no pays taxes to Municipality                   (M.N.R.F. 
gives Grant for significant conservation Lands)

$1.48                  -   $1.48                    -   0

Unorganized Territory
Crown Land and Private Land where taxpayer pays 

Public Land Tax to Province
$1.48 100%                  -   $1.48                    -   0

TOTALS 3,009 267.88        5,514 7,441.44$     8,523

 

NOT AN INVOICE  Crown  Owes  the  Municipality $0.00   Municipality  Owes  the  Crown $7,173.56

Agreement Review Period

APPENDIX A  - Application of Comprehensive Protection Charges to Land Types

CPC Year: CPI Increase

 CPC payment invoices must be sent in after April 1 of the current fire year



Municipal Fire Agreements Fire Information Cost Reporting Form 210

Fire Information Report for Municipalities 2023

Issued to Date: 

yyyy-mm-dd

Address

Municipal # MNRF #

Fire Reported to Municipality Date: Time:

yyyy-mm-dd hh:mm

Fire Reported to MNRF Date: Time:

yyyy-mm-dd hh:mm

Zone Basemap Block or

Lot Concession Surveyed Township

Initial Response Group Fire Cause

Assistance Requested by To

Fuel Type MPA/CPA/Border Fire

Hectares Burned Crown land Private land

Source of Iignition Responsible Group

Fire Start: Date: Time:

yyyy-mm-dd hh:mm

Fire Out: Date: Time:

yyyy-mm-dd hh:mm

Incident Commander Phone Number

(This section completed by Municipality only)

Fire Number

Initial Fire Size (ha): Final Fire Size (ha):

Municipal Fire Information Description Codes Page 4

Aviation, Forest Fire and Emergency Services Revised: November 23, 2022



Municipal Fire Agreements Fire Information Cost Reporting Form 210

Municipal Fire Agreement Cost Report Form 210 Part  I

MNRF/Municipal Start Date Out Date
yyyy-mm-dd yyyy-mm-dd

MPA/CPA or Final Size

or lot and conc Border Fire (ha)

CPA (Ha) MPA (Ha)

Assistance Requested by To

A. Personnel / Apparatus

$881.50  

x $257.87 =

 Half hour on fire per units of 8 or less people x $257.87 =

Sub-total

Reimbursement claimed (greater of i or ii) Total

B. Aircraft Air fees only for time over fire. No helitak fee for delivery, pick up or servicing of fire crews

CL215 / 415 Dispatch Fee $2,762.83 x # of Aircraft =

 Flying Rate $5,525.65 x Total Hours =

Twin Otter Dispatch Fee $1,516.73 x # of Aircraft =

 Flying Rate $3,033.45 x Total Hours =

Birddog Flying Rate $2,662.68 x Total Hours =

Helicopters
# of Light     x Total Hours =

ACIMS
# of Intermediate $1,442.65     x Total Hours =

# of Medium $2,731.05     x   Total Hours =

# of Heavy     x Total Hours =
ACIMS

Total Aircraft Costs

C. Other Expenditures Approved in Suppression Plan (Appendix C descriptions)
(Attach description of expenses and invoices)

Total Other Expenditures

Grand Total (A+ B + C)

=
MNRF Municipal

# personnel units

input max. number of units on fire at one time

input max. number of units on fire at one time

total # half hours for all units

total # half hours for all units

# apparatus units

See Appendix C in municipal agreement documents for detailed aircraft 
information or Refer to Guidelines for Fire Information and Costing in Municipalities

Enter Ha only if Border Fire

(i.) Flat Rate for Response/False Alarm                      
(min. amount paid out for a response)

Sub-total must be >$881.50
People must be assigned to apparatus prior to 
forming personnel units (4staff/apparatus)

Municipalities process invoice using total of A,B and C

(For joint Fire Operations Enter MNRF + Municipal Costs
Non-border fire only)

Fire Number

(ii.)   Half hour per number of apparatus

Fire Cause Municipality

Zn-Basemap-Block

Aviation, Forest Fire and Emergency Services Revised: November 23, 2022



Municipal Fire Agreements Fire Information Cost Reporting Form 210

Part II MNRF Only Municipal Fire Agreement  Cost Report Form 210

Border Fires (areas between MPA/CPA) must be completed electroncially by MNRF 

Border fire costs are calculated automatically if CPA/MPA ha are entered in Part I
MNRF/Municipal fire cost data must be input using Agency's Grand Total (A+B+C) Costs Part 1.

MNRF  USE  ONLY

Municipal Agreement Fire Information and Cost Report Form 210 Part  II

Calculation of Border Fire Costs

Agency 
Responsible

Hectares 
Burned

%  of Area 
Burned

Agency's 
Total Costs

Costs Agency 
Responsible 

For
Agency to be 

billed for

Ministry C.P.A.

Municipality M.P.A.

TOTALS

Part III MNRF Only Municipal Fire Agreement Cost Report Form 210

To: 

Refer to Court 

Amount: 

Ministry Owed Amount: 

Comments 

Reviewed by:
(Prov. Coordinator, 
Prevention and 
Prescribed Burning) 

(Print) (Sign) (Date) 

Approver: 
(Print) (Sign) (Date) 

Signature Block 

Recommended by:
(Print) (Sign) (Date) 

No re-imbursment or invoicing required 

Municipality Owed   

Municipal Costing Options (Processed at the end of fire season using end of year reconcilliation process)

(Print) (Sign) (Date) 

(Print) (Sign) 

Recommendations Re: Collection Costs 

Prepared by:

(Date) 

Contents of Form 

Ministry to Assume Total Cost 
Rationale attached when required 

Issue Invoice to Responsible Party 
Include Address in Comments Section  

Amount to be Invoiced to Municipality
Amount  Re-imbursed to Municipality

Certified True and 
Correct by:

Aviation, Forest Fire and Emergency Services Revised: November 23, 2022



Municipal Fire Agreements Fire Information Cost Reporting Form 210

Fire Cause - use the following:
LTG Lightning REC Recreation
RES Resident MIS Miscellaneous
RWY Railway IDF Industrial Forest
IDO Industrial Other INC Incendiary
UNK Unknown

Fuel Type at Point of Attack - use the following
GRA Grass SLA Slash
SHW Shrubs, Hardwood Bush CON Conifer
IKC Insect Killed Conifer MIX Mixed Wood
HWD Hardwood BLO Blowdown
PLA Plantation OTH Other

Source of Ignition - use the following
LTG Lightning SMM Smoking Materials
CAM Campfire GRA Grass Burn
INC Incinerator RUB Rubbish Burning
MAT Matches BRU Brush Burn
GAR Garbage Dump Burn STR Structural Fires
LOC Locomotive SFC Sparks from Chimney
POW Power Line Short SAW Powersaw
FIR Fireworks OME Operating Mechanical Equipment
VEH Vehicle Exhaust System SPA Spark from Burner
EQU Equipment Fires DLC Dumped Live Coals or Ashes
MIS Miscellaneous UNK Unknown
SPB Slash Pile Burning

Responsible Group - use the following
LTG Lightning CAM Camper
HUN Hunter CAN Canoeist
HIK Hiker BER Berry Picker
CHI Children RER Res Rural
REU Resident Urban COT Private Cottager
TRA Trapper CAR Car Passenger
MIE Mining Idustry Employee CRO Commercial Resort Owner
POE Power Industry Employee PRO Prospector
ANG Angler RTC RR Train Crew
MIS Miscellaneous UNK Unknown

Municipal Fire Information Descriptions

Aviation, Forest Fire and Emergency Services Revised: November 23, 2022



1/4/2023

Appendix C

Municipal Fire Agreement Rates to / from Municipalities
Valid for 2023 

Assistance Under Agreement

Comprehensive Protection 
Charges (CPC)

The new CPC rate system 
started April 1, 2013

CPI rates are capped to a 
maximum increase of 4%

CPC Invoices must be sent in 
after April 1 for the current 
fire year

CPC rates adjustments are applied April 1 of each year.

CPC rates increase Sept 2021 – Sept 2022 = 6.7% which is 
reduced to 4.0%

2023 CPC fee = 1.48

            

Ground Suppression Services

Personnel Units
Apparatus Units

Personnel and Apparatus Units 
are annually adjusted by the 
Consumer Price Index for 
Ontario (All Products) from the 
period of September to 
September.  Rates will be 
updated by Feb. 28 each year.

 Flat Rate/False Alarm 
 $881.50 per fire or 

 $257.87 per half hour (30 min) for each unit;
 Personnel Unit = max. 8 staff plus suppression gear
 Apparatus Unit = Fire service vehicle with maximum 4 

staff, includes suppression gear. Must assign staff to 
vehicle first before forming personnel units.

Personnel must be affixed to an Apparatus Unit prior to 
forming personnel units.  

NO charges for helicopter if only used to deliver, pickup or 
service crews.  Helicopter is not an apparatus.

Apparatus” means a Fire service vehicle that carries 
firefighting personnel and/or equipment (includes 
pumpers, tankers, boats, Fire response vehicles that are 
designed to carry portable/firefighting equipment).  



1/4/2023

Air tankers and Birddog

CL215/415 and Twin Otters

Air tanker fees are set annually 
by the MNRF.

Air tanker support charges are 
only for time over the fire.

2023 Rates

CL415
Dispatch Fee = $2762.83 
Hourly rate = $5,525.65

Twin Otter 
Dispatch Fee = $1,516.73 
Hourly rate = $3,033.45

Birddog 
Hourly rate = $2,662.68

Helicopter

Helicopter rates are set annually 
by the MNRF Aviation 
Services.

No charge if used just to 
transport MNRF crews to fire

Municipalities that rent aircraft 
for fire operations must submit 
rental invoices

2023 Helicopters Rates

Light                                 $As per invoice
Intermediate                     $1,442.65 per hour,
Medium                            $2,731.05 per hour, 
Heavy (calculated at time of hire)
(flying calculated as "time over fire" only)

Aircraft rental fees by the Municipality must be supported 
by the aircraft invoice.

Section C:  Other Expenses 
Approved in the Suppression 
Plan

All costs must be supported by 
actual invoices, or fire cost 
forms by either agency

Other Agencies Form 210 Total 
can be included here on joint 
operations.

As per approved response plan for a specific fire;
the following expenses can be considered;

 Heavy equipment
 Base camp operations and infrastructure support, 

accommodations
 Incident Command Trailers
 Support equipment; boats, ATV’s, trailers that fall 

outside normal fire apparatus

Form 210 Part 2



 

 
234-2022-6136 

December 22, 2022 

Dear Head of Council: 

Ontario’s housing supply crisis is a problem which has been decades in the making. It 
will take both short-term strategies and long-term commitment from all levels of 
government, the private sector, and not-for-profits to drive change. Each entity will have 
to do their part to be part of the solution.  

To help support this important priority, I am pleased to provide you with an update on 
recent legislative and regulatory changes our government has made to help get 1.5 
million homes built over the next 10 years. 

Bill 109, the More Homes for Everyone Act, 2022 

Bill 109, the More Homes for Everyone Act, 2022, was introduced on March 30, 2022 
and received Royal Assent on April 14, 2022.  

As part of the government’s More Homes for Everyone Plan, Schedule 5 of Bill 109 
made changes to the Planning Act. Consequential changes were also made to the City 
of Toronto Act, 2006.  

Most of the Planning Act changes are now in effect except for the zoning and site plan 
control fee refund provisions, which are due to come into force on January 1, 2023. 
However, I am committed to bringing forward legislation to delay the effective date of 
the fee refund changes from January 1, 2023 to July 1, 2023. These legislative changes 
would be introduced in the new year.   

In the event that any fee refunds become due to applicants before these legislative 
changes are made, municipalities might consider not issuing refunds in the interim given 
my express commitment to introduce legislation that, if passed, would retroactively 
cancel the requirement. 

You can find more information about Bill 109 on the Environmental Registry of Ontario 
(019-5284), and the Ontario Legislative Assembly website. 

…/2 

Ministry of  
Municipal Affairs 
and Housing   
 
Office of the Minister 
 
777 Bay Street, 17th Floor  
Toronto ON  M7A 2J3  
Tel.: 416 585-7000   
  
  

Ministère des 
Affaires municipales  
et du Logement   
 
Bureau du ministre 
 
777, rue Bay, 17e étage 
Toronto (Ontario)  M7A 2J3 
Tél. : 416 585-7000 

 



-2- 

Bill 23, More Homes Built Faster, 2022 

Bill 23, the More Homes Built Faster Act, 2022, was introduced on October 25, 2022, 
and received Royal Assent on November 28, 2022.  

To support More Homes Built Faster: Ontario’s Housing Supply Action Plan: 2022–
2023, Schedule 9 of Bill 23 made changes to the Planning Act. Schedule 1 of Bill 23 
also made similar changes to the City of Toronto Act, 2006 related to site plan 
provisions. Schedule 3 of Bill 23 made changes to the Development Charges Act. 

The planning-related and municipal development-related charges changes came into 
force on November 28, 2022, except for provisions related to removal of planning 
responsibilities from certain upper-tier municipalities, certain provisions related to 
parkland dedication, and exemptions from municipal development-related charges for 
affordable and attainable housing, which will come into force on a day in the future to be 
named by proclamation. Provisions related to Conservation Authorities will take effect 
January 1, 2023.  

Bill 23 also made changes to legislation led by other ministries. Please see Appendix A 
for an overview of the effective dates of the Bill 23 changes by schedule. 

You can find more information about Bill 23 on the Environmental Registry of Ontario 
(019-6163), and the Ontario Legislative Assembly website. 

Bill 3, the Strong Mayors, Building Homes Act, 2022 and Bill 39, the Better 
Municipal Governance Act, 2022 

Bill 3, the Strong Mayors, Building Homes Act, 2022, was introduced on August 10, 
2022, and received Royal Assent on September 8, 2022. Bill 3 and associated 
regulations (O. Reg. 529/22 and O. Reg. 530/22) came into force on November 23, 
2022.   

Bill 39, the Better Municipal Governance Act, 2022, was introduced on November 16, 
2022, and received Royal Assent on December 8, 2022. Bill 39, amendments to 
associated regulations (O. Reg. 581/22 and O. Reg. 583/22), and additional regulations 
to prescribe provincial priorities (O. Reg. 580/22 and O. Reg. 582/22) came into force 
on December 20, 2022. Additional details can be found in Appendix B and on the 
Ontario Legislative Assembly’s website (Bill 3 and Bill 39).  

Sincerely, 

Steve Clark 
Minister 

c: Chief Administrative Officer 



 
Appendix A 

Effective Dates for Bill 23, the More Homes Built Faster Act, 2022 
 
Schedule Effective Date 
Schedule 1: City of 
Toronto Act, 2006 
 

All of the changes in Schedule 1 (City of Toronto Act) came into force 
on the day the bill received Royal Assent.  
 
Note: The legislative changes to the City of Toronto Act include 
amendments that give the Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing 
authority to make regulations imposing limits and conditions on how 
municipalities can regulate the demolition and conversion of residential 
rental properties of six units or more. No regulations have been made at 
this time.   

Schedule 2: 
Conservation 
Authorities Act 

Changes in Schedule 2 (Conservation Authorities Act) came into force 
the day the bill received Royal Assent, except for:  
• On January 1, sections related to streamlining disposition of lands 

for CAs comes into force which would allow CAs to sell or lease 
land without Minister’s approval provided they follow rules around 
public consultation and notifications. 

• Also on January 1, sections that enable the Minister’s ability to issue 
direction to freeze fees and ability to scope CA commenting on 
development applications and land use planning policies through 
regulation, would come into force but only have effect when the 
Minister issues direction on fees or if a regulation prescribing Act 
under which CA commenting roles is restricted is made. 

• Changes related to CA permitting (including removal of 
“conservation of land” and “pollution”, adding “unstable soil and 
bedrock”, regulation making powers to exempt development from a 
CA permit where it has been authorized under the Planning Act, 
etc.) take effect on a later date (upon proclamation) once a new 
regulation under Section 28 of the CA Act is in effect.  MNRF 
continues to consult on that regulation through the Environmental 
Registry (#019-2927). 

Schedule 3: 
Development 
Charges Act, 1997 

All of the changes in Schedule 3 (Development Charges Act) came into 
force on the day the bill received Royal Assent, with the exception of 
provisions relating to development charge exemptions for affordable 
and attainable housing units, which would take effect upon 
proclamation. 

Schedule 4: 
Municipal Act, 
2001 

All of the changes in Schedule 4 (Municipal Act) came into force on the 
day the bill received Royal Assent. 
 
Note: The legislative changes to the Municipal Act give the Minister of 
Municipal Affairs and Housing authority to make regulations imposing 
limits and conditions on how municipalities can regulate the demolition 
and conversion of residential rental properties of six units or more. No 
regulations have been made at this time.   

Schedule 5: New 
Home Construction 
Licensing Act, 
2017 

Many of the amendments in Schedule 5 (New Home Construction 
Licensing Act) came into force on the day the bill received Royal 
Assent.  
 
The amendments regarding the maximum fine that a court may impose 
for a subsequent conviction, as well as most of the amendments related 



Schedule Effective Date 
to administrative penalties, will come into force on February 1, 2023.  

Schedule 6: 
Ontario Heritage 
Act 

Most of the amendments to the Ontario Heritage Act (OHA) made 
through the bill will be proclaimed into force on January 1, 2023. These 
include: 
• The new authorities under Part III.1 of the Act that relate to the 

Standards and Guidelines for Conservation of Provincial Heritage 
Properties. 

• Most of the changes to procedures related to municipal registers, 
including the process and requirements around inclusion of non-
designated properties on the municipal registers. However, the 
requirement for municipalities to make their municipal registers 
available on a publicly accessible website will not come into force 
until July 1, 2023 to provide municipalities with time to ensure 
compliance. 

• Limiting the ability to issue a Notice of Intention to Designate a 
property subject to a prescribed event to only those properties 
included on a municipal register. 

• The authority to prescribe criteria for determining cultural heritage 
value or interest for the purposes of including non-designated 
properties on the municipal register and designating a Heritage 
Conservation District (HCD). 

• The authority to set out processes to amend and repeal HCD bylaw 
in regulation. Note, the Ministry of Citizenship and Multiculturalism 
will consult on the development of these processes to be set out in 
regulation in 2023. 

  
Regulatory amendments to O.Reg. 9/06: Criteria for Determining 
Cultural Heritage Value or Interest will also come into force on January 
1, 2023. These changes establish that non-designated properties 
included on a register must meet one or more of the criteria outlined in 
the regulation, and that individual properties and HCDs must meet two 
or more of the criteria included in the regulation in order to be 
designated. The regulation also includes transitionary provisions to 
address matters underway at the time of the changes coming into force.  
  
The outstanding amendments to the OHA made through Bill 108, the 
More Homes, More Choice Act, 2019, will also be proclaimed into force 
on January 1, 2023. The amendments speak specifically to the 
demolition or removal of an attribute that is not a building or structure 
within an HCD. 
  
Regulatory amendments to O.Reg. 358/21: General will come into force 
on January 1, 2023. These amendments include consequential 
housekeeping amendments and transition provisions related to the 
above legislative amendments coming into force. 
  
Bill 23 included some minor housekeeping amendments to the OHA 
that came into force upon Royal Assent. These included repealing the 
alternative definition of “alter”. 

Schedule 7: 
Ontario Land 
Tribunal Act, 2001 

The changes in Schedule 7 (More Homes Built Faster Act, 2022) will 
come into force on proclamation.  



Schedule Effective Date 
Schedule 8: 
Ontario 
Underground 
Infrastructure 
Notification System 
Act, 2012 

The changes in Schedule 8 (Ontario Underground Infrastructure 
Notification System Act, 2012) came into force on the day the bill 
received Royal Assent. 

Schedule 9: 
Planning Act 

The changes in Schedule 9 (Planning Act) all came into force on the 
day the bill received Royal Assent, with the following exceptions: 
• provisions related to removal of planning responsibilities from 

certain upper-tier municipalities, which would come into force on a 
day to be named by proclamation.  

• provisions related to the exemption of community benefits charge 
and parkland dedication requirements for affordable and attainable 
housing units  

• provisions related encumbered land to be conveyed to 
municipalities by developers for park or other recreational purposes 

• provisions related to Conservation Authorities (linked to the changes 
in Schedule 2) will take effect January 1, 2023 

Schedule 10: 
Supporting Growth 
and Housing in 
York and Durham 
Regions Act, 2022 

Except as otherwise provided, the Act set out in Schedule 10 came into 
force on the day bill received Royal Assent.  
• Sections 7 to 10, subsection 11 (5) and section 14 come into force 

on a day to be named by proclamation of the Lieutenant Governor. 
Once in force, these sections will require a prescribed municipality 
to develop, construct, and operate the Lake Simcoe phosphorus 
reduction project and allow the Ontario Clean Water Agency to 
undertake some or all of that project if ordered to do so by the 
Lieutenant Governor in Council. The project will also be exempt 
from the Environmental Assessment Act. 

• Subsection 85 (1) comes into force on the later of the day 
subsection 44 (1) of this Act comes into force and the day section 2 
of Schedule 5 to the Accelerating Access to Justice Act, 2021 
comes into force. Subsection 85 (1) makes consequential changes 
to the Act arising out of changes to the Expropriations Act in respect 
of alternative hearings processes. 

• Subsection 85 (2) comes into force on the later of the day section 
61 of this Act comes into force and the day section 42 of Schedule 4 
to the Comprehensive Ontario Police Services Act, 2019 comes into 
force. Subsection 85 (2) makes consequential changes to the Act 
arising out of the Comprehensive Ontario Police Services Act, 2019 
consistent with other Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and 
Parks legislation. The change would allow a person undertaking an 
inspection to obtain the assistance of the local police force rather 
than the Ontario Provincial Police Force. 

 
 
 
 



 
 
 

Appendix B 

Bill 3, the Strong Mayors, Building Homes Act, 2022 and Bill 39, the Better 
Municipal Governance Act, 2022 

 
 
As a result of Bills 3 and 39, changes were made to the Municipal Act, 2001, City of Toronto 
Act, 2006 and the Municipal Conflict of Interest Act, and regulations were established to 
give the mayors in Toronto and Ottawa strong mayor powers to help advance shared 
provincial-municipal priorities, including building new homes. These powers include: 

• Choosing to appoint the municipality’s chief administrative officer, 
• Hiring certain municipal department heads, and establish and re-organize departments, 
• Creating committees of council, assigning their functions and appointing the Chairs and 

Vice-Chairs of committees of council, and 
• Proposing the municipal budget, subject to council amendments and a head of council 

veto and council override process. 

The mayors of Toronto and Ottawa can also use strong mayor powers related to provincial 
priorities. These include: 

• Vetoing certain by-laws if the mayor is of the opinion that all or part of the by-law could 
potentially interfere with a provincial priority, 

• Bringing forward matters for council consideration if the mayor is of the opinion that 
considering the matter could potentially advance a provincial priority, and 

• Proposing certain municipal by-laws if the mayor is of the opinion that the proposed by-
law could potentially advance a provincial priority. Council can pass these by-laws if 
more than one-third of council members vote in favour. 

The provincial priorities for the purposes of strong mayor powers are prescribed in O. Reg. 
580/22 and O. Reg. 582/22 and they are: 

1. Building 1.5 million new residential units by December 31, 2031. 
2. Constructing and maintaining infrastructure to support housing, including, transit, roads, 

utilities, and servicing. 

 



Andrew Nowlan, Municipal Administrator <clerk@twp.prince.on.ca>

2023 MPAC Municipal Levy
1 message

Nicole McNeill <Nicole.Mcneill@mpac.ca> Wed, Dec 14, 2022 at 2:35 PM
Reply-To: mia.cho@mpac.ca
To: "clerk@twp.prince.on.ca" <clerk@twp.prince.on.ca>

December 14, 2022

Andrew Nowlan
CAO/Municipal Administrator
Township of Prince

Subject: 2023 Municipal Levy

As we look to the year ahead, we are pleased to let you know that MPAC’s Board of Directors approved the 2023 operating budget with no overall increase to the municipal
levy.

MPAC has been controlling expenses through the strategic management of financial and business operations, including efforts to modernize existing services and increase
commercial revenues. While this focus has allowed MPAC to hold the municipal levy steady for three years, we will need to take into consideration the impact of rising
inflation, labour and other costs for future budgets.

Your municipality’s annual 2023 levy amount will be $20,423.65 or a 0.09% increase.

 

Under the Municipal Property Assessment Corporation Act, funding requirements are distributed to each municipal billing partner based on their total assessed values and
property counts, compared to all of Ontario. An explanation of how each municipality’s levy is calculated is available here: https://www.mpac.ca/sites/default/files/2022-12/
2023%20Municipal%20Levy%20ENG.pdf.



Additional information about your municipality’s specific 2023 levy calculation is available here: https://workdrive.mpac.ca/external/ae07ced283521f344e36ef39e8032a
9a7dbc465b4e6fde35a7f12267e4f6190a.

Your first bill will be mailed in early January 2023, followed by equal quarterly installments. You will soon receive your Assessment Change Summary from your local
MPAC account management team, which provides a high-level summary of the assessment changes within your municipality.

We encourage you to read our 2022 Municipal Partnerships Report https://news.mpac.ca/2022-municipal-partnerships-report to see the highlights of our work together this
year.

If you have questions about MPAC’s funding requirements, please contact:

Mary Meffe

Vice-President, Corporate and Information Services

and Chief Financial Officer

289-539-0306

Mary.Meffe@mpac.ca

For information about the assessment services available to your municipality, please contact:

Carmelo Lipsi

Vice-President, Valuation and Customer Relations

and Chief Operating Officer

289-317-0881

Carmelo.Lipsi@mpac.ca

Yours Truly,

Alan Spacek  

Chair, MPAC Board of Director



Nicole McNeill
President and Chief Administrative Officer, MPAC

Copy   MPAC Board of Directors
Executive Management Group, MPAC
Director and Regional Managers, Municipal and Stakeholder Relations, MPAC

    

















Andrew Nowlan, Municipal Administrator <clerk@twp.prince.on.ca>

OCIF Communication Update
1 message

OCIF (MOI) <OCIF@ontario.ca> Fri, Dec 16, 2022 at 10:28 AM
To: "OCIF (MOI)" <OCIF@ontario.ca>
Cc: "Dubonnet, Joseph (MOI)" <joseph.dubonnet@ontario.ca>, "Akumu, Molly (MOI)" <Molly.Akumu@ontario.ca>

 

Dear OCIF Recipient

 

Please be advised that with the recent news release the Ontario Community Infrastructure Fund (OCIF), recipients are no longer required to
keep their 2023 funding allocations confidential.

 

Thank you for your cooperation.

The OCIF Team

 



 
234-2022-5422 

January 4, 2023 

Dear Heads of Council, 

I’m pleased to share an update on key initiatives underway at my ministry to help meet our 
government’s goal of building 1.5 million new homes over the next 10 years.  

The legislature recently passed our government’s More Homes Built Faster Act, 2022 which 
takes bold action to ensure that all communities can grow with a mix of ownership and rental 
housing types to meet the needs of all Ontarians. 

Our government knows that building inspectors play a critical role in ensuring that new homes 
meet the public safety requirements set out in Ontario’s Building Code. However, the capacity 
of municipal building departments has been impacted by recruitment challenges and the 
increasing number of building inspectors retiring from the profession. That’s why, earlier this 
year, we took action to help municipalities address labour supply shortages in the building 
sector by amending the Building Code to provide a new model for municipal building 
departments to design and administer internship programs for building inspectors.  

Effective July 1, 2022, municipal building departments can establish program entry criteria for 
interns that meet their own local recruitment and enforcement needs. This new internship 
model supports public safety by continuing to require that a qualified building inspector or 
Chief Building Official supervises the work of interns. The interns must also pass ministry 
technical and legal exams before being able to practice independently as building inspectors. 

In the coming months, the ministry will develop guidance materials to support municipalities 
that are interesting in launching local programs to recruit new intern building inspectors. We 
look forward to working with municipalities to implement local internships.  

Additionally, the ministry has engaged a consultant to identify opportunities for enhancements 
to the qualification program for building practitioners. We are seeking input from the public, 
including municipalities, building inspectors, designers, septic installers and building 
professionals not regulated by the ministry. This feedback will help guide future decisions on 
new approaches to qualification. 

For more information and to review the discussion paper, please visit the Environmental 
Registry of Ontario (ERO) website at https://ero.ontario.ca/notice/019-6433. 

 

…/2 

Ministry of  
Municipal Affairs 
and Housing   
 
Office of the Minister 
 
777 Bay Street, 17th Floor  
Toronto ON  M7A 2J3  
Tel.: 416 585-7000  

Ministère des 
Affaires municipales  
et du Logement   
 
Bureau du ministre 
 
777, rue Bay, 17e étage 
Toronto (Ontario)  M7A 2J3 
Tél. : 416 585-7000 

 



-2- 

In addition to this ongoing work, the ministry is modernizing the provincial Qualification and 
Registration Tracking System (QuARTS). QuARTS is used by over 7,000 building 
practitioners to update their qualification and registration information online and to help the 
government regulate safety and compliance in the Ontario building industry.  

Modernizing QuARTS will create a more efficient and user-friendly system, allowing building 
officials to spend more time on the important task of reviewing and issuing building permits to 
support the government’s key priority of increasing housing stock. 

Finally, the ministry made the 2012 Building Code Compendium freely available in Adobe 
PDF format through the website (https://www.ontario.ca/page/request-digital-copy-2012-
building-code-compendium). Since its launch in March 2022, the ministry has provided free 
copies to over 5,000 building professionals to reduce barriers and help accelerate the 
construction of new homes across the province. This initiative has enabled inspectors to 
access Building Code requirements while performing their work onsite in a more convenient 
format. Additionally, candidates studying for the ministry’s exams are able to access and 
learn Building Code content in an easy to navigate, user-friendly manner. 

As part of the plan to build 1.5 million homes over the next 10 years, the government looks 
forward to continuing consultations with municipalities, the building industry and the public)to 
investigate further changes to Ontario’s Building Code in order to create more housing and 
support public safety. 

If you are interested in learning more about any of the ministry’s initiatives related to the 
transformation of Building Code services in Ontario, please contact us at 
BuildingTransformation@ontario.ca. 

Thank you for your continued partnership as we work together to get more homes built faster 
for all Ontarians. 

Sincerely, 

Steve Clark 
Minister 
 
c: Municipal Clerks 





Ministry of the Environment,
Conservation and Parks

Office of the Minister

777 Bay Street, 5th Floor
Toronto ON M7A 2J3
Tel.: 416-314-6790

Ministère de l'Environnement,
de la Protection de la nature et des
Parcs

Bureau du ministre

777, rue Bay, 5e étage
Toronto (Ontario) M7A 2J3
Tél. : 416.314.6790

357-2022-2960
December 16, 2022

His Worship Enzo Palumbo
Mayor
Township of Prince
Email: epalumbo@princetwp.ca

Dear Mayor Palumbo:

To begin, I would like to congratulate you on your recent election. I look forward to working with
you and your Council to protect our environment for generations to come.

Thank you for your commitment to your community and our province.

I am writing to
programs to producer responsibility between July 1, 2023 and the end of 2025. As you know,
your municipality is one of those slated to transition to the new framework in 2023.

Our new blue box regulation was filed in June 2021 after extensive consultation with
municipalities, producers, and the waste sector. It is expected to save municipalities $171
million per year once fully transitioned while expanding services to more communities and
locations and expanding what is collected across Ontario.

Simply put, we know Ontarians want to recycle more and expect us to do our part in the roles

must do better. That is why we are implementing one standardized blue box program across
Ontario and working with municipalities and producers to set the highest recycling targets in
North America. Thank you and your staff for being part of this historic transformation to reduce
waste.

The first step will be for producers to develop one common collection system across Ontario.
There are currently two Producer Responsibility Organizations (PROs) doing this work on behalf
of producers Circular Materials and Ryse Solutions. These two PROs have submitted a joint
plan that sets out how they will establish a collection system. Circular Materials is taking the
lead in organizing the necessary contracts for setting up the collection system, including working
with municipalities on how services will be provided in their communities.

Some municipalities will have already informed Circular Materials of their intent to have Circular
Materials provide collection services in their community, with no role for the municipality. If this
is the case for your municipality, thank you for your timely consideration of this matter.



His Worship Enzo Palumbo
Page 2.

For some, however, we understand that further discussions may be needed with Circular
Materials and municipal staff. It is important that all parties continue to work collaboratively on
the transfer of responsibility away from municipalities. An orderly and well-planned
implementation of the regulation is critical to avoid any disruption to blue box services for
Ontarians and will set up all parties for success in the future.

I strongly encourage you to work closely with Circular Materials, and where applicable, finalize
any needed commercial agreements in a timely manner that will support a smooth transition to
producer responsibility. I expect that your municipal staff will have already been engaged in
discussion with Circular Materials about how they want to proceed. If they have not, I strongly
encourage you to direct them to do so.

The Blue Box Transition Schedule outlines the date that eligible communities will start
transitioning to producer run blue box services between July 1, 2023 and December 31, 2025.
As laid out in the schedule, the Township of Prince is set to transition on 7/1/2023.

If your municipality has any questions about the role for municipalities in implementing the blue
box regulation, I encourage you to contact Circular Materials directly. Circular Materials has
established a Municipal Working Group and it is likely that your municipal staff are already
directly engaged in that process. Circular Materials can be contacted by email at
info@circularmaterials.ca or by phone at (844) 328-7149.

Your municipality can also contact the Resource Productivity and Recovery Authority (RPRA)
for questions about the blue box regulation. RPRA is the organization responsible for

Compliance and Registry team can be reached by email at registry@rpra.ca or by phone at
(833) 600-0530.

Finally, if you would like to speak with me directly about this, please send an email to
david.piccini@ontario.ca and I will get back to you at my earliest convenience. I am confident
that working together, we can have a successful transition to the producer responsibility
framework and build a better blue box program that will benefit the people of Ontario, for today
and for future generations.

Thank you for your continued engagement and support on this important initiative.

Sincerely,

David Piccini
Minister of the Environment, Conservation and Parks

c: The Honourable Steve Clark, Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing
Colin Best, President, Association of Municipalities of Ontario
Frank Denton, CEO, Resource Productivity and Recovery Authority



 Date: December 14th, 2022 

 Prince Twp - Recreational Committee 
 Meeting Minutes 

 Attendees 
 Andrew Nowlan (Clerk), Enzo Palumbo (Mayor), Margaret Christenson (Council 
 Representative) 

 Rec Members: Tiffany Baxter, Kristi LaForrest, Mary Jin-Moore, Samantha Pigeau, Bobbi Jo 
 Holmes, and  Jane Weir 

 Purpose of the Meeting 
 Prince Township Recreational Committee meeting to discuss with members of Council and 
 the Office questions the committee had regarding finances, policies and procedures. 

 Summary of Discussion 
 Township is opening a new bank account under the umbrella of the Prince Township office. 
 The treasurer will have access to view this account once it has been created. Expenses that 
 the recreation committee has paid for can be reimbursed by the office with proper 
 receipts. Andrew is going to look into the square that recreation has and see if the office 
 can connect this to the new bank account that the recreation committee will have under 
 the Prince Township office. The committee can make the guideline as to what the spending 
 cap is before the purchase needs to be brought up to council (i.e. purchases over $500). 

 Liquor license is considering being renewed under the township (it was under the township 
 before), and liability for the township and insurance is a big factor. The renewal of the 
 liquor license is coming up to council in February. The Recreation Committee should 
 explore the option of getting special occasion permits for events we want to run that will 
 have liquor. People with their Smart Serve will be the only ones involved with the 
 distribution of alcohol, just like previous events. Lottery License will also need to be looked 
 into by the recreation committee for future events. 

 The recreation committee will not be involved in rentals. The responsibility of securing 
 rentals, setting up and cleaning up for rentals will be established by the office and not the 
 responsibility of the recreation committee. 



 2 

 The Recreation committee is able to use the watershed land that is next to the fire hall for 
 events. Andrew is going to check in with the insurance provider to make sure we are 
 insured at that property as well as all other township property (i.e. the parks and marina). 

 Grants should be brought to the attention of Andrew when there is a grant available that 
 the recreation committee would be interested in applying for and the committee meets the 
 guidelines for that grant. 

 The library has its own board and is able to choose when and if their space is able to be 
 used by other groups, like the recreation committee. The early on center has ownership 
 over the room downstairs as per their rental agreement. 

 Next Meeting 
 Date: February 18th (tentatively) 

 On the agenda: 

 -  Vote on positions (chair, vice chair, secretary, treasurer) 
 -  Define the roles of responsibilities for each position 
 -  Determine a Quorum (usually 50% + 1) 
 -  Determine who are committee members vs committee volunteers 
 -  Establish a mission statement for a recreation committee 
 -  Determine our fundraising goals for the year 



 pg. 1 

December 20, 2022 

Prince Township Mayor & Council  

Re: Use of Municipal Facilities ( Meeting Hall )  

Dear Sirs & Madams: 

I would like to investigate the possible use of floor space at the Prince Township Municipal 

facilities to startup a free weekly karate class for people of all ages.  

Let me provide a bit of background about the Shintani Wado Kai Karate Federation, and my 

personal qualifications.  

In 2012, I retired as a sergeant with the Ontario Provincial Police after 30 great years in a 

policing. Prior to joining the OPP, I served as a police officer with the Wawa Police and before 

that, with the Ottawa Police services. During my married life, my wife dreamed of building a 

home on part of her parent’s farm. With the severance of two additional parcels of land on 

Walls Road approximately 10 years ago, we finally realized that dream last year. We are almost 

complete.   

During most of career and even before becoming a police officer, one of my hobbies and skills 

was a love for sport karate. I was enrolled in my first class at the age of 12 and apart from a few 

years during the busiest times of my career I have always trained in and used karate as a tool to 

aid in my own physical and mental wellness. I have been involved in karate for 50 years now. 

Previously residing in Wawa, we found karate to be a great activity for our whole family. In 

addition to earning a black belt, my wife and two of three sons also achieved their black belt 

ranks. As a family, we eventually took over operation of one of the two Wawa clubs in 1997 and 

taught karate to many people young and old until we eventually sold our home and moved to 

Sault Ste Marie in 2013. Sometimes we had over 30 students enrolled at one time. For my wife 

and I, it was truly one of the most rewarding aspects of our life. We have lifetime friendships 

with many people through those connections. 

Duane Wenmann 

750 Walls Side Rd 
Prince Township, ON 
P6A5K6 
705-450-0753 
wenmannssm@gmail.com 



 pg. 2 

I currently hold a sixth Dan black belt rank with a teaching certificate from the Shintani Wado 

Kai Karate Federation based in Welland Ontario. Our organization has two to three hundred 

member clubs throughout Canada with over 2000 black belts. We are affiliated with Karate 

Canada and our clubs are monitored and inspected to ensure the highest standards from our 

instructors and representatives. Our members and instructors must pay an annual registration 

fee of $70 (incl tax) which are used to offset operational expences and such things as clinics and 

tournaments at the national and provincial levels. Students are also covered under an all-

inclusive sports insurance policy which extends to sanctioned off site activities.  There is also a 

chance for hard working students to compete for a place on our National Team which travels to 

events worldwide and apply for an educational bursary awarded annually to college/university 

aged students. 

In addition to the national fee, there is also a once annual regional fee of $15 for members in 

the northwest region ( Prince Twp would be part of that area geographically ) to offset regional 

operation expenses. Member clubs are currently Thunder Bay, Ft.Frances, Hearst, Wawa, 

Michipicoten, Dubreuilville , and Sault Ste Marie.  

FYI, Wado Kai is major Japanese karate style with similarities to a few of the established and 

well known Japanese karate styles in the Sault Ste Marie area but is quite unlike some of the 

Korean martial arts (ie; Kook Sool Won, Hapkido, Tae Kwon Do). We are definitely not a combat 

sport like Brazilian Ju Jitsu and some of the mixed martial arts clubs that have become popular 

in recent years. Although there may be some light physical contact between participants during 

a class, every effort is made to ensure students do not sustain physical harm during activities 

and that we always remain traditionally non-violent.  

Most recently and prior to Covid19 shutting down many extra-curricular activities in the cities 

and towns, we had a small club operating out of the gymnasium at Ecole Notre Dame du Sault. 

In addition to training the body, our instructors emphasize self-discipline, mutual respect and 

kindness towards all persons, and mental focus.  

As previously stated, I am offering to run these classes and teach free of charge. In addition to 

the mandatory national and regional fees, I would only be looking for reimbursement from 

students for equipment needs such as uniforms, grading certificates and belts. Most of those 

items can be supplied at the discounted rates I have access to. The costs for equipment are 

minimal considering current costs for many other sports and like activities. I would estimate the 

average cost for all equipment and incidentals throughout the year to be less than $100 per 

student including tax and shipping. 

Although I am flexible, my thoughts are to have no more than 15 students attending a once 

weekly class with a start time close to 6:30 pm and an end time close to 8:30 pm. I would work 



 pg. 3 

with whatever days are amenable with the Township from Monday to Thursday but it would be 

preferable to have the class on the same evening each week except where special 

circumstances (ie; special Township meetings) dictate the class be moved to a different night. 

Of course, I would seek the courtesy of receiving 24 hrs minimum notice if possible in such 

cases.  

No equipment, chairs, tables are required. Students would be barefoot or wearing approved 

non-marking martial arts footwear. The room would remain clean, free of damage, and 

untouched. If a broom or dust mop was left accessible, we could ensure the floor is cleaned 

prior to departure.  

Classes normally run concurrent to the regular school year (September through end of June). 

However, as the warm weather tends to reduce attendance at extra-curricular indoor activities, 

it has been my experience that there is little to be gained by operating beyond the 3rd weekend 

in May.  

If you have any questions or concerns, please feel free to contact me at your convenience and I 

will try to answer to the best of my ability.  

 

Sincerest Regards  

Duane D. Wenmann 
 



THIS AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) made this 21st day of November, 2022. 
 
BETWEEN:  
 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF SAULT STE. MARIE 
(hereinafter referred to as the "City") 

 
 

- and - 
 
 

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PRINCE 
(hereinafter referred to as the "Township") 

 
WHEREAS the Township, since 2005, has requested that the City provide technical assistance 
to the Township in administering the provisions of the Ontario Building Code and Township by-
laws relating to construction of buildings; 
 
AND WHEREAS the City has agreed to continue to provide such technical assistance subject to 
the terms and conditions as set out in this Agreement; 
 
NOW THEREFORE in consideration of the rents, covenants and agreements herein contained 
and hereby assumed, the parties for themselves and their respective successors and assigns do 
hereby covenant and agree with one another as follows: 
 
 GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

1. The City shall provide plans examination and building inspection services (the "Plans 
Examination & Inspection Services") as follows: 
 

a. Plans examination and review for compliance with the Ontario Building Code and 
the Township’s building and zoning by-laws, excluding the Township’s property 
standards by-law; 

b. Written correspondence describing plan review and inspection deficiencies to 
applicant and associated parties;  

c. Analyses of written responses or amended plans resulting from the plan review 
and inspection;   

d. Written notices to the Township regarding matters that pertains to the building 
permits; 

e. Inspections of buildings under construction as required upon notification by the 
applicant directly to the City of Sault Ste. Marie Building Division; 

f. Attendance in court for the purpose of providing evidence on behalf of the 
Township in the event that the Township undertakes a prosecution arising from 
non-compliance;  

g. Enforcement and prosecutorial services; 
h. Building permit applications will be submitted directly to the Sault Ste. Marie 

Building Division; 
i. Building permit and inspection statistical data will be submitted on a monthly basis 

to the Township.  
 



 2 

2. The said Plans Examination & Inspection Services shall be performed by duly qualified 
City employees and City employees shall be subject to direction from the City only. 
 

3. City employees providing Plans Examination & Inspection Services to the Township shall 
maintain a work log indicating the dates and lengths of time that such employees have 
performed Plans Examination & Inspection Services and the nature of such services. 
 

4. The City, as employer, shall pay all salaries, wages and costs associated with its Building 
Division. 
 

5. The Township shall appoint by by-law any person(s) employed by the City as its inspectors 
pursuant to the Building Code Act. 

 
COST OF INSPECTION SERVICES 

 
6. Permit fees to be provided to the City of Sault Ste. Marie Building Division by the permit 

applicant at the time of application. The fees for the required permit are based on the 
service index as listed in The City of Sault Ste. Marie Schedule “A” User Fees. This amount 
shall comprise the full cost of The Building Division Plans Examination & Inspection 
Services inclusive of enforcement and clerical duties, mileage and miscellaneous 
expenses for inspections related to all Building Classification. 

 
COMMENCEMENT AND TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT  

 
7. This Agreement shall be in force for four years commencing on the 1st day of January 

2023 and shall conclude on the 31st day of December 2026 (the “Term”). 
 

8. Either party to this Agreement may terminate this Agreement at any time and for any 
reason upon thirty (30) days written notice of termination to the other party. Should a notice 
to terminate be given, the City shall continue to collect permit fees and provide the Plans 
Examination & Inspection Services outlined in this Agreement up to and including the date 
of such termination. 

 
INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE 

 
9. The Township shall completely indemnify and save harmless the City, its employees, 

officers and agents from any and all claims, demands, actions, losses, expenses, costs or 
damages of every kind and nature whatsoever and howsoever caused that the City, its 
employees, officers or agents may sustain or suffer as a consequence of the actions, 
inactions or omissions as a result of the performance of this Agreement, except for any 
negligent omission, actions or inactions by the City, its employees, agents or officers. 

 
10. The Township agrees to maintain at all times during the currency of this licence 

hereinbefore described, a minimum of Five Million ($5,000,000.00) Dollars comprehensive 
general liability insurance in respect of personal injury, death, loss or damage of or to any 
person or property of third parties, with insurers licenced to conduct business in Ontario. 
The City shall be added as an Additional Insured to the required liability insurance policy 
or policies and no such policy shall be cancelled or allowed to lapse without at least thirty 
(30) days written notice having been given to the City. An Insurance Certificate, on the 
C.S.I.O. form and satisfactory to the City’s Risk Manager, shall be provided to the City 
prior to the commencement of the term in this Agreement.  



 3 

 
NOTICE 

 
11. All correspondence or other notices related to the terms of the Agreement shall be 

delivered as set forth below: 
 
 Chief Administrative Officer 
 The Corporation of the City of Sault Ste. Marie 
 99 Foster Drive 
 Sault Ste. Marie ON P6A 5X6 
 
 Municipal Administrator 

Corporation of the Township of Prince 
 3042 Second Line West 
 Prince Township, ON P6A 6K4 
 

ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
 

12. This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the parties, and there are no 
representations, warranties, collateral agreements or conditions affecting this Agreement 
or the relationship of the parties or supported hereby other than as expressed herein in 
writing.  Any amendment to this Agreement must be in writing, duly executed by the 
parties. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have affixed their Corporate Seals attested by the 
signatures of their duly authorized signing officers to be effective as of the 21st day of November, 
2022.  
 
 
   THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF SAULT STE. MARIE 
   
   Per: 
    _________________________________ 
    Mayor – Matthew Shoemaker 
 
    _________________________________  
    City Clerk – Rachel Tyczinski 
 
   We have authority to bind the Corporation. 
 
 
   THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PRINCE  
 
   Per: 
     _________________________________  
    Mayor – Enzo Palumbo 
 
    _________________________________  
    Municipal Administrator – Andrew Nowlan 
 
   We have authority to bind the Corporation.  













 The Corporation of the Township of Prince                                            

3042 Second Line West,  

Prince Township, Ontario P6A 6K4 

clerk@twp.prince.on.ca 

                                                    Phone 705-779-2992     Fax 705-779-2725 

 

Mayor:  Enzo Palumbo                                                    Municipal Administrator:  Andrew Nowlan 

 

Staff Report 

January 10, 2023 

 

Re: Pay Equity/Parity 

 

It is staff recommendation to conduct a pay equity/parity review for the purpose of establishing 

job descriptions, pay scales, and job evaluation systems to bring the employees of Prince 

Township a fair wage in relation to their roles and to have a measure of how to move forward 

with raises and job expectations.  

 

The following information is an overview of staff raises since the last pay equity maintenance 

was conducted in 2010.  The chart outlines the difference between raises and the national 

inflation rate. It does not take into consideration the Cost-of-Living Allowance (COLA) or the 

rate of pay in relation to the position.  

   

   

 

 

Prince 

Raise% 

 

StatCan 

Inflation Rate% 

2023   

2022 3.0 6.8 

2021 3.0 3.4 

2020 0 0.7 

2019 0 1.9 

2018 0 2.3 

2017 1.5 1.6 

2016 1.0 1.4 

2015 0 1.1 

2014 1.0 1.9 

2013 0 0.9 

2012 2.0 1.5 

 11.50% 23.5% 

Respectfully, 

Andrew Nowlan 

Municipal Administrator 





























 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
eScribe Proposal 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  

Township of Prince - ON 
Contact: Andrew Nowlan 
Title: Municipal Administrator 
Email: clerk@twp.prince.on.ca  

By: Sandy Mann 
Email: smann@escribemeetings.com 
Phone: +1-647-680-0663 
Date Prepared: January 6, 2023 
Expiration Date: March 30, 2023 



 

2 | P a g e  
 

Situational Analysis 
 
The Township of Prince is looking for ways to streamline and automate their 
manual processes. Being a small municipality, administrators wear multiple hats 
and are responsible for several projects. With a meeting management solution, they 
would like to strengthen their local coverage, improve deadline management and 
improve transparency.  
 

Project Goals 
 
Based on our discussions to date, it is understood that the Township of Prince is 
seeking a way to improve meeting management to achieve the following project 
goals: 

• Digitally create and manage public meetings for staff, elected officials and 
public 

• Improve staff efficiency with automated workflow and approval processes 

• Reduce late items and changes to agenda items after they have been published  

• Improve citizen transparency with Web-streaming and ADA compliant 
documents  

• Efficiently create and distribute paperless agendas to meeting attendees 

 

Pricing 
Efficiency Bundle 

 
 
 
 

Module License Type  License Fee Quantity  Cost 

eScribe Efficiency Bundle Annual 5,410$          1 5,410$        

eScribe Meeting Manager INCL

eScribe Participant Access  INCL 

eScribe Internet Publishing  INCL 

Forms Authentication INCL

Total - Annual Software and Support Fees 5,410$      

Implementation Fees  Service Fee Quantity  Cost 

eScribe Accessibility Setup/Training One time 1,623$           1 1,623$        

2 Meeting Types  INCL 

eScribe Academy Licence One Time

Total - One-time Implementation Fees 1,623$      

eScribe Annual Service and Support Fees



 

3 | P a g e  
 

 
Digital Readiness Bundle 

 
 
Pricing Notes: 
 

• All fees are in $CAD (exclusive of taxes), based on a three (3) year term and 

are valid for sixty (60) days from the date of this response.  

• Implementation fees are for remote support. Onsite personnel can be 

arranged. Additional travel and living expenses would apply in addition to the 

Implementation Fees.  

• Year 1 Subscription and Implementation Services Fees are invoiced upon 

commencement of the project.  

• Subsequent year(s) Subscription Fees will be due on the anniversary date 

and will increase from the previous years Subscription Fees by six (6%).   

• Payment Terms are Net 30 from date of invoice.  

• Fees do not include the migration of any existing meeting content. Should 

you wish to migrate legacy data, eSCRIBE would be happy to provide a 

separate statement of work and costs based on specific requirements.  

• ADFS or Azure-AD single sign on capability can be provided – additional 

costs apply.  

• Automatic Closed Captioning of the webcasting stream is optionally 

available for an additional annual fee.  

• eSCRIBE Meetings Standard app for iOS is included in the bundle price 

(unlimited users). Meetings Professional for iPad and Windows 10 are available 

for download at the following annual rates (per user) for a feature comparison 

of Professional and Standard please visit www.escribemeetings.com/mobile-

apps.   

o $100 (1 – 10 users)  

o $75 (11 – 50 users)  

o $50 (51 – 100 users)  

o $35 (100+ users)  

 

Module License Type  License Fee Quantity  Cost 

eScribe Digital Readiness Bundle Annual 8,725$            1 8,725$            

eScribe Meeting Manager INCL

eScribe Participant Access  INCL 

eScribe Internet Publishing  INCL 

eScribe Report Manager  INCL 

Forms Authentication INCL

Total - Annual Software and Support Fees 8,725$         

Implementation Fees  Service Fee Quantity  Cost 

eScribe Digital Readiness Setup/Training One time 2,617$             1 2,617$             

2 Meeting Types, 1 Report Template, 5 Workflows  INCL 

eScribe Academy Licence One Time  INCL 2

Total - One-time Implementation Fees 2,617$          

eScribe Annual Service and Support Fees


